
38
R e v i e w s

Dover Harbour.
BRITAIN’S OLDEST PORT

A TALK BY MARK FROST 
----------- SHEILA R COPE-------------

As part of the Dover Festival, Mark Frost, o f Dover Museum, gave a broad ‘overview’ of the 
development o f Dover Harbour in a talk at the Silver Screen Cinema on the evening of 4 June. This 
was followed by an opportunity to view the current exhibition in the Museum. Although the 
Society has been fortunate in thepast tohave received several illustrated accounts by experts about 
the harbour development, a number of our members were present, proving that we welcome 
opportunities to widen our knowledge about the industry which is the lifeblood o f the town. Mark 
showed us copies o f maps which we could later study upstairs, glass o f wine in hand, and in his 
talk gave his view o f the development of the harbour from the Bronze Age until the present day.

T h e  d i s c o v e r y  of the  Bronze A g e  b o a t ,  
reinforcing tha t o f the Langdon Bay wreck 
w ith its cargo o f scrap m etal from France, 
dem onstrated  that Dover has been  a cross­
C hannel port for at least 3,000 years. It is 
likely th a t ships w ere once able to sail far 
up  the D our to  find she lte r b u t tha t tree  
felling on su rround ing  hills caused the 
river to  silt up. So traces o f Rom an quays 
have b een  found a t Stem brook, Bench 
S treet and n ea r the  site o f the p resen t bus 
garage, b u t by  Saxon and N orm an tim es, 
from  400 a d , useful je ttie s  w ere restricted  
to the river m outh .

In  1295 a F rench  raid levelled the 
tow n and by  1306 a protective wall had 
b ee n  bu ilt a round  it and across the river 
w hich the reby  becam e blocked to ships. 
Vessels could tie up  only  to the outside of 
the wall -  precarious in bad w eather -  
and  to the Wyke, a shingle beach w hich 
form ed to the w est o f the tow n in front of 
a pool fed by  underg round  stream s. In 
tim e th is (Archcliffe Pool) was used as a 
harbou r and  Snar Gate was rebuilt to give 
access th rough  the tow n wall to the W est­
ern  beach  ra th e r than  the seashore. Be­

cause such an  area o f refuge was som e 
distance from  the tow n a guard tow er 
was bu ilt in  1495 and  then  in  1518 a 
second tow er was a ttem p ted  by  John  
Clark, M aster o f the  M aison Dieu, to­
g e th er w ith  a short p ier to p ro tect the 
pool, now  know n as Paradise Pent, from  
the sea. T he s truc tu re  in itiated  th e  proc­
ess o f silting up  w hich becam e such an 
irksom e and  expensive problem  for over 
th re e  c e n tu r ie s . H e n c e fo rth  sh ing le  
w hich had  form erly  b ee n  sw ept by  cur­
ren ts  past Dover would b e  deposited  in 
w hatever harbou r was created.

Efforts to solve the problem  began 
w ith a p ier overseen  by Jo h n  T hom pson, 
C lark’s successor, w hich w as abandoned  
in  1551 afte r four a ttem pts. T here  was 
an o th er am bitious project p lanned  and 
carried  out by  T hom as Digges from  1583­
86 to bu ild  a m assive wall w ith sluices 
th rough  w hich th e  shingle w ould be 
forced out. H en ry  VIII had proposed 
enclosing the w hole harbou r -  too ad­
vanced for T udor technology -  and Eliza­
beth  I had recognised the need  for an 
effective port on the  sou th  coast. Tolls of



3d p er ton  on every  ship en tering  English 
ports for seven  years helped  to pay for 
500 carts o f earth  and chalk a day to be 
b rough t to  Dover and 1000 m en  to w ork 
on the wall. This construction, held  to ­
g e th er w ith  faggots and w ithies, created  
the  n ew P en t and becam e th e  basis o f the 
existing W estern Dock. The old Paradise 
P ent w as dug out too.

In 1616, following com plaints about 
m ain tenance, th e  H arbour Board w as set 
up  and  as a resu lt o f land being  leased to 
provide revenue  the Pier d istrict w ith its 
w arehouses, banks and b rew eries soon 
rivalled the  tow n in size. A lthough th e re  
w as alw ays a shortage o f  m o ney  an 
appeal to  the  G overnm ent in  1660 to 
im prove h arb o u r access led to som e 
renovations. The Crosswall w as con­
structed  across G reat Paradise creating  
an  in n e r basin  and an ou te r harbour. 
Archcliffe Pool dried up and w as bu ilt 
upon. In 1699 £30,000 was allocated to 
scour the  h a rbou r and in  1719 the  Pier 
H eads w ere rebuilt. A gate was added to 
the wall o f the Great Pent in  1733 and 
the Castle Je tty  was constructed  in  1752 
so th a t ships could use the E astern  side of 
the bay.

T he outbreak  of w ar w ith F rance in 
1793 focused atten tion  on the strategic 
im portance of Dover and Jam es Moon 
and Sir H en ry  O xenham  began eighteen 
years o f im provem ents w hich produced 
w et and  d ry  docks in  a tidal harbour, new  
clock and  com pass tow ers on the Cross­
wall and  stone quays. In 1834, T elford’s 
plan, com pleted in 1838by Jam es Walker, 
c re a te d  a tid a l h a rb o u r  d o u b led  in  
size. N evertheless, packet ships w ere 
obliged to anchor off shore and goods and 
passengers w ere unloaded by  m eans of 
row ing boats.

T he adven t of railways (South Eastern  
via F o lkestone in  1844 and London, 
C hatham  and  Dover in 1861) heralded  
real changes. In 1847 Jam es W alker 
had started  the W estern Arm, la ter the 
A dm iralty  Pier, by low ering m assive

stone blocks in to  a w ooden fram ew ork. 
T hough incom plete, w ith in  four years it 
was long enough to take packet ships 
alongside so th a t at least th e  shingle 
problem  was being  overcom e. Rail lines 
w ere laid  along the Arm  and even tua lly  
ships b erthed  on  e ith er side and  tra in s 
could stop at any  berth . By the 1890s, 
h o w ev er, padd le  s te a m e rs  cou ld  go 
straight to London and the H arbour Board 
decided to develop com m ercially . A n­
o ther p ier to the east -  even tua lly  the 
Prince o f Wales -  was begun  in 1893. T he 
A dm iralty obtained parliam entary  assen t 
t^  develop Dover as a harbou r o f refuge 
for th e  Navy. So the A dm iralty  P ier was 
extended, and the E astern  A rm  of nearly  
3,000ft and  the B reakw ater o f 4,000ft 
w ere built. At th is stage the cliffs a t the 
easte rn  end w ere cut back  creating  a 
platform . In the m ean tim e by  1904 tran s­
atlantic liners w ere berth ing  at the  Prince 
of Wales Pier, b u t un fo rtu n a te ly  also 
h itting  the  harb o u r en trance  and w hen 
th e  H am burg-A m erika line m oved to 
Southam pton o thers followed suit. The 
new  harbour was too sm all to  con tain  the 
w hole fleet bu t on ou tb reak  o f w ar in 
1914 it was handed  over to the  Navy and  
becam e base to the D over Patrol.

W hen the H arbour Board resum ed  
control in 1923, sm allb u sin essesb ecam e 
established at the easte rn  end  and  the 
C am ber was leased  to C aptain T ow nsend  
w hose "Artificer’’ could carry  fifteen cars 
and tw elve drivers from  the  E astern  Arm 
from  1928. This was m ain ly  the  heyday  
o f rail w ith the Golden Arrow  luxury  
service operating  from  1929 and in  1936 
the steam  pow ered tra in  ferry  dock was 
established at W estern Docks.

After the w ar sailings resum ed  in 1948. 
T hose who w ere in D over th en  m ay 
rem em b er the Golden Arrow steam ing  
b e h in d  S h ak esp eare  b ea ch  an d  cars 
being loaded by crane in G ranville Dock, 
bu t rapid  change was im m inen t. M uch of 
the P ier d istrict had already  d isappeared  
pre-war and was finally cleared for freight.



In 1950 the first drive-on ferries, Halladale 
and Lord W arden w ere introduced and in 
1953 two ram ps at the Cam ber in  the 
Eastern Docks w ere opened. As Parker 
Pens and o ther businesses including coal 
bunkering  w ere cleared in  the 1960s, a 
th ird  double b erth  was erected  w hich 
could load and unload sim ultaneously. 
A lready the  first d rive-th rough  ferry  
was in use and Eastern docks gained 
suprem acy. Sand and shingle were brought

The Exhibition
com prises m any  m aps, pictures, 
m ode ls  an d  o th e r  m em o rab ilia  

arranged  chronologically from  the Bronze 
Age boat to the projected  W estern Docks 
developm ent. T here are copies o f m aps 
show ing proposed and actual im prove­
m en ts including John  T hom pson’s o f 1538 
and  (probably) Digges' o f 1595 and  im- 
press-ive p lans of Dover and the H arbour 
draw n around  1641 by  W illiam Eldred, 
M aster G unner at the Castle. P ictures by 
W illiam  Burgess are  well rep re se n ted
-  "Im proving the Pent" for exam ple. An­

o th e r  p ic tu re  a ttrac ting  a tten tio n  was 
“D o v e r  H a rb o u r  . 1856" p a in te d  by  
H enry  P ether and show ing W ellington 
Dock by m oonlight w ith the  Com pass 
House and  the Clock H ouse designed by 
Jam es Moon. .

M oon’s la rge , d e ta iled , ta k e -a p a rt 
m odel o f proposed new  w ork in 1815 
is q u ite  fa sc in a tin g , so d if fe re n t in 
techn ique from  tha t show ing the  E astern 
Docks re-developm ent in 1966/67.

in to reclaim  land for the arrival o f the 
h o v e rc ra f t  in  1968 a n d  fo r  th e  
construction  of a new  hoverport at the 
W estern end by 1978. Dover becam e the 
world’s busiest passenger port. Innova­
tions continued. Now we have the new  
cru ise  lin e r  te rm in a l an d  A dm iralty  
Pier com es into prom inence again ... yet 
from  tim e to tim e the dredger’s services 
are still essential to the harbour.

Many exam ples of channel craft are 
shown in model form ranging in size from 
the ’Fly’, a small naval cutter with light 
draft famous from 1763-71 as a passenger, 
mail packet and custom sboat, to the 'Pride 
of Dover' representing recent ferries. I 
noticed the 'Lady Brassey’, DHB's tug, 
which in 1940 played an essential part in 
the Dunkirk evacuation. A rem inder of 
the first War was the m em orial to the m en 
of the traw ler and m inesweeping patrol 
1914-19 who, in sinking submarines, were 
subject to fierce attack themselves.

T he d isp lay  w ould be incom ple te 
without the original copy of the Royal 
Charter granted to Dover H arbour by 
Jam es I in 1606. Itsbulk contrasts with the 
video and m any photographs of the old 
P ie r d is tr ic t a n d  d e m o n s tra te s  th e  
m odernisation of boats and installations 
throughout this century. Please see this 
excellent M useum  exhibition soon. There 
will be tim e for another visit before it 
closes on 15 September.

Helpers Wanted a t Crabble Mill
Helpers are needed in these areas — to share the work on a rota or “w hen needed” basis.

1) Cafe, serving teas and snacks in daytime 
or cooked suppers in evening.
(2) Shop, serving visitors with souvenirs 
and tour tickets.
(3) Tour Guides, for tourists, scvhool 
groups or evening grtoups (training given).
(4) M illing and M aintenance, for the

technically m inded (Training given).
(5) A dm inistration , office work, m ar­
keting and fund-raising (all year round ')
Interested in  find in g ou t more? Ring 
the Trust Secretary, Ian Killberry,01304 
362569 or call at the Mill in Lower Road, 
River when it is open.


